
41W011 Burlington Road, St. Charles, Illinois 60175 | (630) 584-1170 | WWW.KKCOM.ORG 

 

Chairman 

Jeffery Schielke 

Mayor  

          City of Batavia 

Vice Chairman 

John Skillman 

President 

Village of Carpentersville 

CMAP Committee 

Representatives  

Chris Lauzen 

Kane County Chairman 

MPO Policy Committee 

Scott Gryder 
Kendall County Chairman 

MPO Policy Committee 

Jeffery Schielke 

Council of Mayors Executive 

Committee Chair 

MPO Policy Committee 

Matthew Brolley 

CMAP Board 

Municipal Members 

Village of Algonquin  

City of Aurora  

Village of Big Rock  

Village of Burlington 

Village of Campton Hills 

Village of East Dundee 

Village of Elburn 

City of Elgin  

City of Geneva 

Village of Gilberts  

Village of Hampshire 

Village of Huntley  

Village of Kaneville 

Village of Lily Lake  

Village of Lisbon  

Village of Maple Park 

Village of Millbrook 

Village of Millington 

Village of Montgomery 

Village of Newark  

Village of North Aurora 

Village of Oswego  

Village of Pingree Grove  

City of  Plano 

Village of Plattville  

City of Sandwich 

Village of Sleepy Hollow 

Village of South Elgin  

City of St. Charles  

Village of Sugar Grove 

Village of Virgil 

Village of Wayne  

Village of West Dundee 

City of Yorkville 

County Members 

Kane County 

Kendall County

                                                                       

                                                                                              COUNCIL STAFF 

                                                                                                                                                  Thomas B. Rickert          Jacqueline L. Forbes 

Executive Director Council Director 

 

                                                                                                                                                  Troy D. Simpson              Noah S. Jones 

Planning Liaison Planning Liaison 

 

 

KKCOM Bicycle & Pedestrian Committee 

Agenda 
Tuesday, December 10, 2020 

11:00 A.M. 
Join via Zoom or call 312-626-6799 (Meeting ID: 857 9324 8031, Passcode: 950564) 

 
I. Opening of Meeting ......................................................................... Chair Meyers 

A. Introductions...................................................................................................... All 
B. Approval of September 8, 2020 minutes .............................. Chair Meyers 
Action: Approval 

II. General Business 
A. Planning Liaison Update ................................................................ Noah Jones 
Action: Information 

B. Bike Share System 2020 Report/2021 Plans ........................................... All 
Action: Information and Discussion 
 

 
III. Announcements/Updates 

A. Coordinator Updates ................................................................. Troy Simpson 
1. COVID Cycling Trends 
2. Fox River Trail Signage Inventory Updates 
3. Reminder – Kane County Bike/Ped Resources Page 

B. Director Updates ........................................................................ Chair Meyers 
C. Public/Local Agency Updates ..................................................................... All 

Action: Information 
 

IV. Next Meeting(s) 
Thursday, February 18, 2021 
 

V. Adjournment 
 

http://www.kkcom.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85793248031?pwd=QWM4NHJsa0FlaTVITlVrWjNpbm1sdz09


41W011 Burlington Road, St. Charles, Illinois 60175 | (630) 584-1170 | WWW.KKCOM.ORG 

 

Chairman 

Jeffery Schielke 

Mayor  

          City of Batavia 

Vice Chairman 

John Skillman 

President 

Village of Carpentersville 

CMAP Committee 

Representatives  

Chris Lauzen 

Kane County Chairman 

MPO Policy Committee 

Scott Gryder 
Kendall County Chairman 

MPO Policy Committee 

Jeffery Schielke 

Council of Mayors Executive 

Committee Chair 

MPO Policy Committee 

Matthew Brolley 

CMAP Board 

Municipal Members 

Village of Algonquin  

City of Aurora  

Village of Big Rock  

Village of Burlington 

Village of Campton Hills 

Village of East Dundee 

Village of Elburn 

City of Elgin  

City of Geneva 

Village of Gilberts  

Village of Hampshire 

Village of Huntley  

Village of Kaneville 

Village of Lily Lake  

Village of Lisbon  

Village of Maple Park 

Village of Millbrook 

Village of Millington 

Village of Montgomery 

Village of Newark  

Village of North Aurora 

Village of Oswego  

Village of Pingree Grove  

City of  Plano 

Village of Plattville  

City of Sandwich 

Village of Sleepy Hollow 

Village of South Elgin  

City of St. Charles  

Village of Sugar Grove 

Village of Virgil 

Village of Wayne  

Village of West Dundee 

City of Yorkville 

County Members 

Kane County 

Kendall County

                                                                       

                                                                                              COUNCIL STAFF 

                                                                                                                                                  Thomas B. Rickert          Jacqueline L. Forbes 

Executive Director Council Director 

 

                                                                                                                                                  Troy M. Simpson              Noah S. Jones 

Planning Liaison Planning Liaison 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Kane Kendall Council of Mayors 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee 

Tuesday, September 8, 2020  
2:00 p.m. 

Kane County Government Center or Zoom 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 
Attendance 
 
Monica Meyers - Chair 
Amanda Rafter 
Ed Barsotti 
Jackie Forbes 
Jennifer Hughes 
Joshua Harris 
Josh Wyant  
Roopa Anjanappa 
Rachel Vuorenmaa 
Jerad Chipman 
Cate Tracy 
Chris Gottlieb 
Rosie Edwards  
Tom Rickert 
Jackie Forbes 
Troy Simpson 
Noah Jones  

 
 
Executive Director 
Management Analyst 
Former Exec. Director 
Council Director 
Public Works Director 
Project Manager 
Superintendent 
Engineer 
Membership Services Supervisor 
Senior Planner 
 
Engineer 

 
 
Kane County Forest Preserve 
Village of East Dundee 
Ride Illinois 
Kane Kendall Council of Mayors 
Village of Oswego 
Baxter and Woodman 
Batavia Park District 
City of Aurora 
St. Charles Park District 
Village of Montgomery 
City of Geneva 
City of St. Charles 
St. Charles Park District  
KKCOM 
KKCOM 
KKCOM 
KKCOM 

 
 
 

 

 

http://www.kkcom.org/


41W011 Burlington Road, St. Charles, Illinois 60175 | (630) 584-1170 | WWW.KKCOM.ORG 

 

I. Opening of Meeting 

a. Bike Ped Committee Chair Monica Meyers called the meeting to order at 2:10 p.m. 

 

b. Approval of June 16th, 2020 Minutes 

A motion was made by Jennifer Hughes to approve the minutes from the June 16th, 2020 KKCOM 

Bike Ped Committee Meeting. The motion was seconded by Jerad Chipman and passed 

unanimously.  

 

II. General Business 

a. Planning Liaison Update 

 

Noah Jones gave the PL Update 

 

Changes to Council Staff 

 

Ryan Peterson has left Kane County and Troy Simpson has taken over as the Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Coordinator. Noah Jones has joined KKCOM as a Regional Planning Liaison from 

his role as a Traffic and Permitting intern for the Kane County DOT. Welcome Noah! 

 

Upcoming Meetings 

 

The next KKCOM Transportation Policy Committee will be taking place on October 15, 2020 

at the Kane County Government Center Auditorium at 1:00pm. 

 

The next KKCOM Bike Ped Committee will be taking place TBD in December (the planned 

meeting conflicts with the CMAP Bicycle and Pedestrian Task Force.) 

 

Funding Opportunities/Announcements 

 

Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program (ITEP) Cycle 14 

 

IDOT is now accepting applications for the Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program (ITEP) 

through November 2, 2020. Agencies may use the funding for a variety of projects: 

 Pedestrian/Bicycle Facilities 

 Streetscapes 

 Conversion of Abandoned Railroad Corridors to Trails 

 Historic Preservation and Rehabilitation of Historic Transportation Facilities 

 Vegetation Management in Transportation Rights-of-Way 

 Archaeological Activities Relating to Impacts from Implementation of a 

Transportation Project 

 Storm Water Management, Control and Water Pollution Prevention or Abatement 

Related to Highway Construction or Due to Highway Runoff 

 Reduce Vehicle-Caused Wildlife Mortality or Restore and Maintain Connectivity 

Among Terrestrial or Aquatic Habitats 

 Construction of Turnouts, Overlooks, and Viewing Areas 

More information is available on the IDOT website: idot.Illinois.gov. 

 

Illinois Department of Natural Resources—Boat Access and Snowmobile Trail Funding 

 

Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) is accepting applications for funding through 

the Boat Access Area Development grant program. The deadline to apply is Oct. 2, 2020. The 

Boat Access program is a state-financed grant program that provides funding assistance to 

local government agencies for acquisition and/or development of land for public boat and 

canoe access areas in Illinois. The program can provide up to 100 percent reimbursement 

funding assistance on approved development project costs and 90 percent reimbursement on 

land acquisition costs 

 

 

 

 

http://www.kkcom.org/
http://www.idot.illinois.gov/transportation-system/local-transportation-partners/county-engineers-and-local-public-agencies/funding-opportunities/ITEP


 

 

The Snowmobile Trail Establishment Fund provides financial assistance up to 100 percent of 

eligible development/rehabilitation and equipment costs incurred by a local agency for 

approved projects that benefit public snowmobiling opportunities. The primary purpose is to 

provide financial aid to eligible private, not-for-profit snowmobile clubs to construct, maintain 

and rehabilitate snowmobile trails and facilities on public lands, designated roadways, or 

private land opened to such use in the state. Deadline to apply is October 1, 2020. See the 

IDNR website for more information: www2.illinois.gov/dnr/Pages/default.aspx 

 

Shared Fund and CMAQ/TAP Programs 

 

The next call for STP-Shared Fund and CMAQ/TAP projects will be in January 2021. As a 

reminder, Phase 1 Engineering must be substantially complete by the time applications are 

due (mid-March) for STP-Shared and for CMAQ/TAP projects. 

 

2020-2022 Urban & Community Forestry Grants 

 

The Morton Arboretum is administering a grant program to offer urban and community 

forestry grants of $3,500 to $20,000 to municipalities, tribal governments, park districts, 

counties, and other units of local government in Illinois. Awardees are required to provide a 

100% cash or in-kind match to their grant funds. This grant provides funds for an inventory of 

public trees and an accompanying urban forestry management plan. For this cycle, there 

are no funds available for tree planting. However, tree planting may be used as match with 

some limitations, as noted in the Request for Proposals. Municipalities are required to pass a 

tree preservation / protection ordinance before the end of the grant period and assistance 

to complete this requirement will be provided by The Morton Arboretum at no charge. 

Applications are due Friday, September 25th, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. and the grant period ends 

Monday, August 1, 2022. See the Chicago Region Trees Initiative (CRTI) website for more 

details. 

 

KKCOM Staff Activities 

 

Council Staff will be attending the Illinois Bike Summit this year, occurring on September 15, 

2020. 

 

Council Staff will also be attending the Illinois APA conference, occurring from September 16- 

September 18, 2020. 

 

KKCOM Agreement Tracker  

 

KKCOM staff have compiled an agreement tracker on the council STP page where local 

agencies can check in to see how long it has been since an agreement was submitted as 

well as track expected times to assist with Active Program Management. The tracker includes 

all federal funding sources. 

 

Mobility/Travel COVID-19 Data 

Council staff have been keeping up-to-date reports on mobility data provided by Google 

Maps giving insights into the type of travel people are undertaking in our local region as well 

as the volume of travel during the COVID-19 situation. Reports will continue to be updated so 

long as the data is available. The reports/data are hosted on GitHub. 

 

Regional Transportation Authority COVID Dashboard 

The RTA has provided a region-wide dashboard for ridership and fare box trends due to the 

ongoing pandemic, including revenue impacts to the RTA Sales Tax. Current data show 

ridership resilience as strongest for bus services, both in the suburbs and the city, with Metra 

seeing the greatest overall declines in ridership. See the dashboard on the RTA website.  

 

 

 

 

 

https://www2.illinois.gov/dnr/Pages/default.aspx
http://chicagorti.org/FY20grant
http://chicagorti.org/sites/chicagorti/files/RFP_FY20UCF.pdf
http://chicagorti.org/FY20grant
http://kdot.countyofkane.org/Pages/PageNotFoundError.aspx?requestUrl=http://kdot.countyofkane.org/KKCOM/Documents/STP/KKCOM_IDOT__AgreementTracker_AllProjects.xlsx
http://kdot.countyofkane.org/Pages/PageNotFoundError.aspx?requestUrl=http://kdot.countyofkane.org/KKCOM/Documents/STP/KKCOM_IDOT__AgreementTracker_AllProjects.xlsx
https://github.com/tmsimps/Google-Mobility-Reports_COVID-19
http://rtagis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html%23/0008db48632a40c5bb4a141ff6196091


 

 

 

CMAP News 

 

ON TO 2050 indicators dashboard and data 

Since the adoption of ON TO 2050, CMAP has continued to track the many indicators chosen 

to measure progress toward the implementation of the plan’s recommendations. Now, 

CMAP’s new dashboard website provides an up-to-date snapshot of the trends for each 

indicator. Additionally, anyone interested in viewing or using the raw data can find it on their 

GitHub page, which they will update continually over the life of the plan. Of interest to the 

KKCOM Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee members are data on parks access, preserved 

acreage and non-Single Occupancy Vehicle trip mode percentages.  

 

Prairie Green Forest Preserve gets a shout out in CMAP Policy Update 

In a new CMAP Policy Update on reimagining an economic recovery with a low-carbon 

future, Geneva and the Kane FPD were recognized for open space protection and land 

management practices enabling the sequestration of carbon as well as storm water 

management. 

 

b. ITEP Cycle 14 Applications 

 

Troy started a discussion regarding ITEP Cycle 14 Potential or Confirmed Applications. He 

mentioned that this year’s ITEP application cycle has an official mark of $105.6 million. The fund 

has been augmented by an annual state allocation of $75 million from the State Road Fund. 

Troy said it should be noted that in Cycle 13, $261.3 million in applications were received and 

$35.7 million in total funds were awards. It was mentioned that council staff would appreciate 

project sponsors providing advanced notification of project applications so they can be 

entered in the Bikeway Inventory shown in the Bicycle Facilities Implementations Dashboard. 

Project sponsors who are unsure of which facilities to apply for are encouraged to consult the 

dashboard and its filters as well. He advised everyone that we are keeping the bike facilities 

implementation dashboard. The Forest Preserve District mentioned that they would have one or 

two applications.  

 

  
  

III. Announcements/Updates 

 

a. Coordinator Updates 

Troy Simpson gave a few announcements and updates.  

 

Bike Share System Update 

The bike share system launched on July 31 in three municipalities: Aurora, Elgin (Downtown 

Neighborhood Association), and Montgomery. The City of Batavia is currently awaiting final 

delivery of their e-bike fleet. Station locations include: 

 

 City of Aurora: Water St. Pedestrian Mall (City Hall), RiverEdge Park/Aurora Transportation 

Center, Aurora Main Library 

 City of Elgin: Fountain Square Development, North Grove Ave. and Kimball Ave. and 

Festival Park 

 Village of Montgomery: Village Hall 

 City of Batavia: South Plaza @ City Hall + 1 additional TBD 

 

There have been 130 rides since the program launched on July 31st (Up to September 1st) with 31.3% 

of the revenue generated coming from riders from annual memberships and 68.7% coming from 

non-member riders.  

 

KKCOM staff have been in contact with McHenry County staff, who are coordinating a launch with 

Koloni in the Spring of 2021 which would allow for Kane County users to cross-pollinate. Sponsors 

interested in joining should contact Troy Simpson at simpsontroy@co.kane.il.us. 

 

 

 

https://cmap-repos.github.io/ONTO2050-indicators/
https://github.com/CMAP-REPOS/ONTO2050-indicators
https://www.cmap.illinois.gov/updates/all/-/asset_publisher/UIMfSLnFfMB6/content/reimagining-an-economic-recovery-with-a-low-carbon-future
http://www.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html%23/a525500978174629a29a9d203c94175e
simpsontroy@co.kane.il.us


 

 

Fox River Trail Signage Summer Inventory 

Council staff rode the Fox River Trail and inventoried signage in June of 2020. Applicable Park 

Districts and Municipalities can review the information on the KKCOM website’s Bicycle and 

Pedestrian information webpage. Staff are already aware of alignment changes which may alter 

signage. Please forward these to Troy Simpson at simpsontroy@co.kane.il.us.  

 

KKCOM Bicycle and Pedestrian App Update 

KKCOM staff have revised/updated some aspects of the KKCOM Bicycle and Pedestrian App. 

Updates are now about 85% complete. Changes include updates to the Bike Shops layer (adding 

the City of Elgin’s new Community Bike Shop) as well as a change from Bicycle Level of Service to 

the Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress measure. The app is hosted on the KKCOM Bicycle and Pedestrian 

information webpage as well as the Kane County DOT Bicycle and Pedestrian Resources webpage. 

 

Kane and Kendall Counties Bike Map Update 

KKCOM staff have finished updates to the Kane and Kendall Counties bike map based on both 

comments received at the February 20, 2020 Bike Ped Committee as well as NearMap aerial 

imagery. Pending some issues with representation of County rights of way, the bike map should be 

posted within the next month. The current draft copy was included in the agenda packet. 

Monica confirmed that the committee looked at the bike/ped map at the last meeting. Troy 

mentioned that he did a satellite sweep to make updates to the map recently. He mentioned that 

he keeps the map updated regularly. There is also a formal update every two years.  

 

KKCOM Bicycle Facilities Implementation Dashboard 

Council staff have created a tool to serve in lieu of the KKCOM Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning 

map. The layer in the map is comprised of the municipal plans consolidated from the 2012 Kane 

County Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan as well as aerial edits for existing facilities up to the present. Staff 

is able to continually update the attributes and geometry of the map layer so updates from project 

sponsors that impact the trail system should be forwarded to Troy Simpson at 

simpsontroy@co.kane.il.us. The tool is hosted on the KKCOM Bicycle and Pedestrian Information 

webpage as well as the Kane County DOT Bicycle and Pedestrian Resources webpage.  

 

Other CMAP News 

At the August 6, 2020 CMAP STP Project Selection Committee, CMAP Staff laid out a proposed set of 

changes to the STP-Shared Fund methodology that would add a category for standalone 

bicycle/pedestrian projects. Those changes were discussed and have been carried forward to the 

September 3, 2020 STP Project Selection Committee. Proposed changes (at current) include: 

 Market for the Facility (Based on CMAP Population/Employment quintiles and the CMAP 

Transit Availability Index) 

 Water barriers scoring takes into account whether or not an adequate alternative crossing 

exists near the project location 

 Complete Streets factors could now include elements such as Refuge Islands, Curb 

Extensions/Bump-Outs/Chicanes, Bicycle racks and/or bike-sharing docks, Crosswalk or lane 

enhancements, and Pedestrian beacons or countdown signals. 

See the detailed changes as proposed here. Changes will be reflected in some facet in the STP-

Shared Fund call for projects due to open in January 2021.  

At the September 3, 2020 CMAP CMAQ Project Selection Committee, CMAP Staff laid out a 

proposed set of changes to the CMAQ Methodology including: 

 Removal of the Regional Priorities scoring category in favor of a category comprising of 

Inclusive Growth (10 points), Emissions Reduction Cost Benefit (60 points), and Transportation 

Impact Criteria (30 points) 

 Moving the Transit Supportive Land Use Scoring to the Transportation Impact Criteria 

 Changing the Transportation Impact Criteria to include Ridership (10 points), Reliability or 

Asset Condition (10 points), and Transit Supportive Land Use (10 points) 

 Changing measures used in the scoring for the Bicycle Transportation Impact Facility 

Connectivity criteria by replacing the Pedestrian Environment Factor with the Level of Traffic 

Stress measure for roads connecting to the bicycle facility project termini 

 Removing the Annual Health Benefit criteria from the Direct Emissions Reduction 

Transportation Impact Criteria and assigning 5 additional points to the Benefits Sensitive 

Population scoring for a total of 25 points. 

Those changes were approved by the committee and will be reflected in the January 2021 call for 

projects.  

http://kanegis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=33a2e712603749d69e7ff51306507991
http://kkcom.org/BikePedInfo.aspx
simpsontroy@co.kane.il.us
http://kkcom.org/BikePedInfo.aspx
http://kdot.countyofkane.org/Pages/Bicycle-and-Pedestrian-Resources.aspx
http://www.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/a525500978174629a29a9d203c94175e
mailto:simpsontroy@co.kane.il.us
http://kkcom.org/BikePedInfo.aspx
http://kdot.countyofkane.org/Pages/Bicycle-and-Pedestrian-Resources.aspx
https://www.cmap.illinois.gov/documents/10180/1160522/STP+PSC_FullPacket_8-6-2020.pdf/67e78bc6-3f39-c7e9-ae52-c28103e90c1b%23page=44
https://datahub.cmap.illinois.gov/dataset/2050-forecast-of-population-households-and-employment
https://datahub.cmap.illinois.gov/dataset/access-to-transit-index%23:~:text=The%20Access%20to%20Transit%20Index,is%20assigned%20to%20each%20subzone.
https://www.cmap.illinois.gov/documents/10180/1172426/STP+PSC_FullPacket_9-3-2020.pdf/ac6b3b51-f9f5-3523-66c1-49e053cf0155%23page=20


 

 

b. Director Updates 

Monica gave a few director updates. She mentioned that the Kane County Forest Preserve keeps 

trail updates on their website and try to keep them as up to date as possible.  

 

She also mentioned a few projects and gave an update on them 

 There is currently repaving going on of the Fox River Trail South of Interstate 90 and the 

Raymond Street tunnel 

 The LeRoy Oaks Trail extension just had its second appraisal done. The target finish date for 

this project is by the end of this year.  

 The South Elgin switchback is almost complete. 

 

c. Public/Local Agency Updates 

There were three public/local agency updates given.  

 Ed Barsotti gave an update on the Ride Illinois Bike Summit taking place on Tuesday, 

September 15, 2020. The summit will include 40+ speakers. 

 Jerad Chipman gave an update on behalf of the Village of Montgomery. He mentioned 

that Montgomery is currently working on trail extensions and that they hope to have them 

done by the end of this year. He also briefly mentioned the new Bikeshare in Montgomery. 

 Roopa Anjanappa gave an update for the City of Aurora. They are going to be applying 

for an ITEP grant. They are also working on extending the Montgomery Road multi-use path 

from the CN Rail tracks to Route 59.  

 Troy Simpson from KKCOM went over the Bike Facilities Dashboard. He showed the county-

wide bike plan and how you can look at existing, future, planned, and programmed bike 

facilities through the county.  

 

 

 

IV. Next Meeting(s) 

The next meeting will be TBD (The CMAP Bicycle and Pedestrian Task Force is scheduled for 

December 2nd) 

 

V. Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:45p.m. following a motion from Ed Barsotti and a Second from 

Jerad Chipman.  

 

 



41W011 Burlington Road, St. Charles, Illinois 60175 | (630) 584-1170 | WWW.KKCOM.ORG 

 

Chairman 

Jeffery Schielke 

Mayor  

          City of Batavia 

Vice Chairman 

John Skillman 

President 

Village of Carpentersville 

CMAP Committee 

Representatives  

Chris Lauzen 
Kane County Chairman 

MPO Policy Committee 

Scott Gryder 
Kendall County Chairman 

MPO Policy Committee 

Jeffery Schielke 

Council of Mayors 

Executive Committee Chair 

MPO Policy Committee 

Matthew Brolley 

CMAP Board 

MPO Policy Committee 

Municipal Members 

Village of Algonquin  

City of Aurora  

Village of Big Rock  

Village of Burlington 

Village of Campton Hills 

Village of East Dundee 

Village of Elburn 

City of Elgin  

City of Geneva 

Village of Gilberts  

Village of Hampshire 

Village of Huntley  

Village of Kaneville 

Village of Lily Lake  

Village of Lisbon  

Village of Maple Park 

Village of Millbrook 

Village of Millington 

Village of Montgomery 

Village of Newark  

Village of North Aurora 

Village of Oswego  

Village of Pingree Grove  

City of  Plano 

Village of Plattville  

City of Sandwich 

Village of Sleepy Hollow 

Village of South Elgin  

City of St. Charles  

Village of Sugar Grove 

Village of Virgil 

Village of Wayne  

Village of West Dundee 

City of Yorkville 

County Members 

Kane County  

Kendall County

                                                                       

                                                                                              COUNCIL STAFF 

                                                                                                                                                  Thomas B. Rickert          Jacqueline L. Forbes 

Executive Director Council Director 

 

                                                                                                                                                  Troy M. Simpson              Noah S. Jones 

Planning Liaison Planning Liaison 

     

 

DATE: December 10, 2020 
 
TO: KKCOM Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee 
 
FROM: Council Staff 
 
RE: Council / Planning Activities Update 

 

 
Upcoming Meetings 

 
The next KKCOM Transportation Policy Committee will be taking place on January 
21, 2020 on Zoom. 
 
The next KKCOM Bike Ped Committee will be taking place on February 18, 2020 
on Zoom. 
 

Funding Opportunities 
 
CMAP STP-Shared Fund and CMAQ/TAP Programs 

 
The next call for STP-Shared Fund and CMAQ/TAP projects will be in January 2021.  
As a reminder, Phase 1 Engineering must be substantially complete by the time 
applications are due (mid-March) for STP-Shared and for CMAQ/TAP projects. View 
the approved draft application packet on the CMAP website. 
 
FEMA Flood Mitigation Assistance Program (FMA) 
 
The Flood Mitigation Assistance Program is a competitive grant program that provides 
funding to states, local communities, federally recognized tribes and territories. Funds 
can be used for projects that reduce or eliminate risk of repetitive flood damage to 
buildings insured by the National Flood Insurance Program. Recipients are chosen based 
on the ranking as well as the eligibility and cost-effectiveness of the project. Recipients 
are required to develop and adopt a hazard mitigation plan as a condition for receiving 
the funds. Applications are due to FEMA on January 29, 2021 at 3:00pm, with awards 
anticipated in Summer 2021. Read more on the FEMA website. 
 
FEMA Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities Program (BRIC) 
 
The Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities grant program is a new FEMA pre-
disaster hazard mitigation program that replaces the existing Pre-Disaster Mitigation 
(PDM) program. The annual mark for the program has increased to $500 million, up 
from an average of $100 million per annum. The program’s focus is on capability and 
capacity building, with eligible projects including moving buildings out of floodplains 
and strengthening building codes. Applications are due to FEMA on January 29, 2021 
at 3:00pm. Read more on the FEMA website. 
 

http://www.kkcom.org/
https://www.cmap.illinois.gov/documents/10180/1255715/STP+Shared+Fund+Application+Booklet_2022-26_finaldraft.pdf/4b1e366e-c157-d7b0-613c-a452d879c89e?t=1603401764082
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/floods
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/building-resilient-infrastructure-communities


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Five Star and Urban Waters Restoration Program 
 
The Five Star and Urban Waters Restoration Program, through the National Fish and Wildlife 
Foundation, focuses on the stewardship and restoration of coastal, wetland and riparian ecosystems 
across the country. Those interested can view the Request for Proposals for more information. 
Proposals are due by January 28, 2021. 
 
KKCOM Staff Activities 
 
Council staff attended the Bicycle Infrastructure and IDOT Policies Training on September 14, 2020. 
 
Staff attended the Illinois Bike Summit on September 15, 2020 and the Illinois APA Conference, 
which occurred September 16 – September 18, 2020.  
 
Staff attended the 2020 IDOT Fall Planning Conference sessions throughout October on the Effects 
of COVID-19 on Transportation and Planning, Active Transportation Funding, Mapping and Access, 
Electrification and Planning and Environmental Linkages. 
 
Staff attended sessions for the 7th Annual Summit on Regional Competitiveness from November 16 
– November 20, hosted by the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago and the Alliance for Regional 
Development. Of note were transportation-heavy sessions on Systemic Impacts of Mobility 
Innovations, Reshaping Mobility, and Transforming the Great Lakes Port. 
 
KKCOM Agreement Tracker 
 
KKCOM staff have compiled an agreement tracker on the council STP page where local agencies 
can check in to see how long it has been since an agreement was submitted as well as track expected 
times to assist with Active Program Management. The tracker includes all federal funding sources. 
 
Mobility/Travel COVID-19 Data 
 
Council staff have been keeping up-to-date reports on mobility data provided by Google Maps 
giving insights into the type of travel people are undertaking in our local region as well as the 
volume of travel during the COVID-19 situation. Reports will continue to be updated so long as the 
data is available. The reports/data are hosted on GitHub. 
 
Regional Transportation Authority COVID Dashboard 
 
The RTA has provided a region-wide dashboard for ridership and fare box trends due to the 
ongoing pandemic, including revenue impacts to the RTA Sales Tax. Current data show ridership 
resilience as strongest for bus services, both in the suburbs and the city, with Metra seeing the 
greatest overall declines in ridership. See the dashboard on the RTA website. 
 
RTA 2021 Regional Transit Operating Budget and Capital Program 
 
The Regional Transportation Authority (RTA) is now accepting public comment through Thursday, 
December 17, on the Proposed 2021 Regional Transit Operating Budget and Capital Program. 
View this year’s budget process to learn more about how to provide public comment. 
 
2020 IDOT Illinois Motorist Survey 
 
The Illinois Department of Transportation is seeking feedback on the state’s transportation system 
through its annual Illinois traveler opinion survey, available through Dec. 31. The survey is available 
online by clicking here or visiting idot.illinois.gov. 
 

https://www.nfwf.org/programs/five-star-and-urban-waters-restoration-grant-program/five-star-and-urban-waters-restoration-grant-program-2021-request-proposals
http://kdot.countyofkane.org/KKCOM/Documents/STP/KKCOM_IDOT__AgreementTracker_AllProjects.xlsx
http://kkcom.org/STPProgram.aspx
https://github.com/tmsimps/Google-Mobility-Reports_COVID-19
http://rtagis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/0008db48632a40c5bb4a141ff6196091
https://rtachicago.org/sites/default/files/documents/businessandfinance/operatingbudget/Proposed_2021_Operating_Budget.pdf
https://rtachicago.org/finance-management/operating-capital
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/secure-web.cisco.com/1DrEHAs-o6BhOuWh_ZcAy-RBYw6zF4QYbT9z8udkqKzJlToxzvwSm1HPxbWS7neHAdDGKJcHLxC3_5_6kB_t9tSgOw7Jvv6NVJtgzaXWK5JO8RmGcUeHIM6-RFnHJ-i06pD6E4IZwWWnRy5PLvLYl95Y3nheXKBB_zVh2tD_qc-O20OyF50hQTU5YIXYh_B0qoJPPBnNor3YPSoTN0f2dlaPIT6lb-QBFVjNP6uURxkgXmaAYoaimnIStcR6EcujpURK9HBehhuIlZu7BIbA9S6vSGA34uJIWpgWxT_30KLhl8ksppEXNPuejR4xG7DK6Xq7-SQTQMjjsoNk_-ON4uAvehcKydbYrokiqnjUn5EKJoZ21_p52hq28Z2bp_jzve2Xyj1inGIyn-JMAdv6rF7nQxvucnFSekZSxbASePM01D4mEb1iRmXlH-iQZTHqT/https*3A*2F*2Fgo.uis.edu*2Ftraveler2020__;JSUlJQ!!NVL4pk8hLUA!ScEqyhLqqpv7Wt07-Z1KUypqzlZzOD-yC-ZqLMsz03SKNYHL-FJUUDQGZnsu4O5Okst2Zg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.idot.illinois.gov/__;!!NVL4pk8hLUA!ScEqyhLqqpv7Wt07-Z1KUypqzlZzOD-yC-ZqLMsz03SKNYHL-FJUUDQGZnsu4O50rIhWFQ$


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CMAP News 
 
Reminder – CMAP Sidewalk Inventory 
 
ON TO 2050, the region’s comprehensive plan, encourages the development of compact, walkable 
communities. To support this recommendation, CMAP created the Sidewalk Inventory. This publicly 
available tool provides data that identifies gaps or opportunities for connections in a community’s 
sidewalk network. Watch the new video to learn how communities can use the database to prioritize 
sidewalk improvements in the future. KKCOM staff created a localized accessible map of this data 
which can be filtered based on population and employment projections from ON TO 2050. It should 
be noted that those projections are due to undergo adjustments due to COVID. 
 

https://www.cmap.illinois.gov/updates/all/-/asset_publisher/UIMfSLnFfMB6/content/dive-into-new-cmap-sidewalk-inventory-data
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=D8emszvm2yY&feature=youtu.be
http://kanegis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=d9fcf312a948479ba40cdc3a3ec3f6d6


41W011 Burlington Road, St. Charles, Illinois 60175 | (630) 584-1170 | WWW.KKCOM.ORG 

 

Chairman 

Jeffery Schielke 

Mayor  

          City of Batavia 

Vice Chairman 

John Skillman 

President 

Village of Carpentersville 

CMAP Committee 

Representatives  

Chris Lauzen 
Kane County Chairman 

MPO Policy Committee 

Scott Gryder 
Kendall County Chairman 

MPO Policy Committee 

Jeffery Schielke 

Council of Mayors 

Executive Committee Chair 

MPO Policy Committee 

Matthew Brolley 

CMAP Board 

MPO Policy Committee 

Municipal Members 

Village of Algonquin  

City of Aurora  

Village of Big Rock  

Village of Burlington 

Village of Campton Hills 

Village of East Dundee 

Village of Elburn 

City of Elgin  

City of Geneva 

Village of Gilberts  

Village of Hampshire 

Village of Huntley  

Village of Kaneville 

Village of Lily Lake  

Village of Lisbon  

Village of Maple Park 

Village of Millbrook 

Village of Millington 

Village of Montgomery 

Village of Newark  

Village of North Aurora 

Village of Oswego  

Village of Pingree Grove  

City of  Plano 

Village of Plattville  

City of Sandwich 

Village of Sleepy Hollow 

Village of South Elgin  

City of St. Charles  

Village of Sugar Grove 

Village of Virgil 

Village of Wayne  

Village of West Dundee 

City of Yorkville 

County Members 

Kane County  

Kendall County

                                                                       

                                                                                              COUNCIL STAFF 

                                                                                                                                                  Thomas B. Rickert          Jacqueline L. Forbes 

Executive Director Council Director 

 

                                                                                                                                                  Troy M. Simpson              Noah S. Jones 

Planning Liaison Planning Liaison 

    

DATE: December 10, 2020 
 
TO: KKCOM Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee 
 
FROM: Council Staff 
 
RE: Fox Valley Bike Share System 

 

 
The initial sponsors of the bike share system for the 2020 riding season included Aurora, 
Elgin, Batavia and Montgomery. Budget uncertainty and safety concerns led to a 
delayed launch date of July 31. This start date was extended even further for the City 
of Batavia, which was unable to receive a shipment of electric bicycles due to supply 
chain issues. Participating municipalities entered into a two-year service contract with 
Koloni (Council staff are requesting that Koloni allow a one-year option for municipalities 
interested in joining for the 2021 riding season).  
 
The bikes have been pulled for Winter as of November 15, and will return as early as 
May 15 and not later than June 1 of 2021. Council staff have gathered some summary 
statistics for the program: 

 Ridership: 277 overall from July 31 to Nov 15. 

 Highest ridership stations: Aurora City Hall, Festival Park (Elgin), Fountain Square 
(Elgin), Depot Museum (Batavia) 

 Total System Revenue: $1,730.78 

 Membership/Individual Rider Revenue Ratio: 70.5% individual riders, 29.5% 
membership 

Sponsors which participated in the system this year received a $7k subsidy from Kane 
County which is not anticipated to be available for the next year. Council staff have 
created some figures and projections (next page) which show anticipatory revenues 
based on each of the participating municipalities’ fleet sizes. 
 
Council staff have also provided a draft of the contract that was entered into by each 
of the initial four municipalities in the following pages of the packet.  
 
Council staff held a meeting with the initial municipalities to address issues with the 
program relating to and not relating to impacts of COVID. It was noted that several 
contract items were not followed up as intended, and the vendor (Koloni) is currently 
working on a response and plan to address some of these issues which should be 
available in the coming week. Council staff will give a contextual overview of some of 
the contract issues at the meeting. 
 
Council staff asks that any sponsors interested in taking part in the system provide notice 

to us and get involved early before the 2021 riding season. 

http://www.kkcom.org/


Municipality Rides (Through 
Nov. 6)

Standard Fleet Size Electric Fleet Size Fleet Cost (Annual) Apportionment % of 
2020 Revenue (est.)

2020 Municipal 
Revenue (est.)

Operating # Days 
2020

Rides per Day Profit (*includes County 
Subsidy)

Aurora 109 10 0  $            15,000.00 42.25%  $                  624.10 98 1.1  $                        (7,375.90)
Elgin 91 8 0  $            12,000.00 35.27%  $                  521.04 98 0.9  $                        (4,478.96)
Batavia 50 12 0  $            18,000.00 19.38%  $                  286.28 50 1.0  $                      (10,713.72)
Montgomery 8 4 0  $               6,000.00 3.10%  $                    45.81 98 0.1  $                          1,045.81 
Municipality 2021 Rides Est. 

(Jun 6 - Nov 15)
Standard Fleet Size Electric Fleet Size Fleet Cost (Annual) Apportionment % of 

2021 Revenue (est.)
2021 Municipal 
Revenue (est.)

Operating # of 
Days (2021 est.)

Rides per Day 
(est.)

Profit (est.)

Aurora 186 10 0  $            15,000.00 35.62%  $               1,063.52 167 1.1  $                      (13,936.48)
Elgin 155 8 0  $            12,000.00 29.74%  $                  887.89 167 0.9  $                      (11,112.11)
Batavia 167 8 4  $            19,200.00 32.03%  $                  956.19 167 1.0  $                      (18,243.81)
Montgomery 14 4 0  $               6,000.00 2.61%  $                    78.06 167 0.1  $                        (5,921.94)

Standard Fleet 
Annual Cost per 
Bike 

Electric Fleet 
Annual Cost per 
Bike

2020 Ridership 
Total (to Nov. 6)

2020 Total 
Revenue (up to 
Nov. 6)

2020 Municipal 
Revenue (up to 
Nov. 6)

2020 % of Revenue 
from Membership

2020 % of Revenue 
from Individual Rides

 $               1,500.00  $               1,800.00 258  $               1,622.87  $               1,477.23 27.7% 72.3%
2021 Ridership 
Total (est.)

2021 Total 
Revenue (est.)

2021 Municipal 
Revenue (est.)

521  $               3,280.02  $               2,985.65 

2020

2021

Fox Valley Bike Share Revenue Projections



 

Services Agreement 

This Services Agreement, dated as of ________ (this "Agreement"), is entered into between 

Koloni, Inc., an Iowa corporation,  located at 325 N. Main St. Pocahontas, IA 50574 ("Koloni"), 

and ________________________________________ ("Customer"), and together, the "Parties", 

and each, a "Party". 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set 

forth and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Services. During the term of this Agreement Koloni shall provide to Customer the 

following services: 

1.1 Access to pedal bikes, electric bikes, electric cargo bikes (“Goods”), and bike 

racks as paid by the Customer to Koloni for use by bike riders (“Users”) during the 

deployment period (herein defined). 

1.2 The deployment of Goods as stated in Section 8.  

1.3 The access to Koloni management software as governed by Exhibit 1. 

1.4 Maintenance as stated in Section 8. 

1.5 Customer service as stated in Section 8. 

1.6 Any specific requirements as defined in and set out in one or more Order 

Form(s) to be issued by Koloni and accepted by Customer as attached in Exhibit 2.  

2. Software License Agreement. Customer agrees to the Software License Agreement as 

attached in Exhibit 1. 

3. Term of Agreement, Exclusivity. The Term of this Agreement begins on the date as 

stated on the above and terminates on December 31, 2021 (“Termination Date”). Customer may 

extend this Agreement for a period not to exceed 12 months from the Termination Date with 

written notice to Koloni. If Customer extends this Agreement, then Koloni shall provide updated 

fees for the Goods and the parties will work together to update this Agreement as necessary.  

4. Fees. In consideration of this Agreement and during the Term, Customer shall pay 

Koloni as attached on the Order Form and Koloni shall provide the number and type of Goods as 

stated on the Order Form. The following fees are set for the Term: 

(a) $1,500 per pedal bike annually 



(b) $1,800 per electric bike annually 

(c) $2,500 per electric cargo annually 

(d) $200 per bike rack (1 bike slot, installation not included) annually 

4.2 Customer shall pay Koloni 10% of the total invoiced price as stated on the 

Order Form due upon execution of this Agreement with the remainder of the price due prior 

May 15, 2020. For the 2021 year all payments shall be due to Koloni by April 1, 2021. If 

Customer fails to pay the invoice to Koloni according to this Section 4, then Koloni may in 

its option, stop the system launch or placement of the Goods, remove Goods from active 

service, and charge the Customer any and all costs associated with the failure of Customer to 

pay the invoice as due.  

5. Transactional/User Fees.  

5.1 Customer shall charge the User the following amounts to rent the Goods: 

(a) Pedal Bikes. $4 for the first hour and $5 per each additional hour. 

(b) Electric Bikes. $9 for the first hour and $10 per each additional hour.  

(c) With long term rates of: 

(i) 12 Months: $50 

(ii) Per Month: $10 

(iii) Daily: $7 

(iv) College/university student Yearly: $40 

(d) Out of zone penalty of $10, where said penalty will be assessed to the 

User when the User returns a Good outside the predetermined geofenced areas.  

6. Transactional Revenue.  

6.1 Koloni shall, by the 15th of each month, provide Customer with a revenue 

payment equaling the total of transactional revenue plus membership fees plus in app 

advertising fees (“Monthly Payment Report”) along with a transactional report stating; a) the 

number of short term rentals, b) the number of memberships, and c) the in application 

advertising split for the previous month.  

(a) Transactional revenue is distributed by the following calculation: 

(i) Deducting any refunds issued by the Customer or Koloni. 

Removing 5% plus .25 cents of each transaction equals the total amount due to 

Customer. Transactional revenue is calculated per each unique bike 



identification number assigned to the Customer, irrespective of the location 

rented or returned.  

(b) Membership fees revenue is distributed by the following calculation: 

(i) Deducting any refunds issued by the Customer or Koloni. 

Subtracting 20% of the total amount equals the total amount due to the 

Customer. Membership fees are calculated on a per bike basis, with each 

Customer apportioned a pro rata share based on the number of unique bikes 

assigned to the Customer.  

(c) In app advertising. Koloni shall retain 50% of all in app advertising 

fees. In the event Koloni determines that in app advertising no longer produces 

revenue, it may in its sole discretion terminate the service without notice. All 

payments owed will be included on the next months Monthly Payment Report.  

7. Sponsorship and Advertisement.  

7.1 The Customer owns all rights and title to sell or lease advertising space on the 

fenders of the Goods. Koloni retains the right to place its logo or name on the downtube of 

each bike, QR code plate and on signage next to each rack or geofenced location to assist in 

the User of each bike.  

7.2 Koloni will, in its best efforts, assist Customer in the recruitment and retention 

of sponsorship opportunities, including but not limited to, grant writing, presentations, 

marketing, assisting in sponsorship payment structure, and/or graphic design assistance.  

7.3 Koloni will, in its best efforts, attend community engagement events with 

advanced notice from the Customer.  

8. Operations.  

8.1 Season Dates.  

(a) Koloni shall launch each Customer system as early as May 15th but no 

later than June 1. In the event the Customer fails to execute this agreement by March 

1, 2020 then Koloni, may in its own discretion, launch the system as necessary with 

notice to the Customer. Koloni shall, within 72 hours of the first snow event causing 

public works to operate snowplows, remove all Customer Goods and place them in 

storage. But in no event with Koloni pull all Customer Goods later than December 1 

of each year.  

8.2 Storage. 

(a) Koloni will store all Goods in an appropriate storage facility during the 

off season at Kolonis expense. During this time Koloni will perform routine 

maintenance and checks on the Goods.  



8.3 Locations. 

(a) The Customer will provide Koloni with a details of geofenced locations 

by March 15 of the initial contract year and March 1 of each year thereafter. Failure to 

do so may delay the launch. Koloni and the Customer will work together to ensure the 

proper geofenced locations and number.  

(b) Customer will arrange installation and placement of all bike racks and 

ensure all proper permit and permissions are in place prior to installation. Koloni will 

assist each Customer to ensure proper installation and placement.  

8.4 Maintenance.  

(a) Koloni will partner with a local bike shop to perform routine 

maintenance and repairs to the Goods. The parties will work together to find a 

mutually acceptable bike shop. Koloni is responsible for the maintenance of each 

Good, however, in the event of repeated theft and damage, the Customer will work 

with and assist Koloni in preventing future damage, if Koloni determines a specific 

geofenced location has repeated damage and/or theft it may remove Goods from that 

area and deploy them to a new location within the Customer service area.  

8.5 Customer Service. 

(a) Koloni will respond to all customer service requests from a user within 

2 hours of receipt. All user refunds must be approved or denied by Koloni by the end 

of the following business day they are requested.  

(b) Any Customer requests relating to bike maintenance will be addressed 

within 48 business hours by Koloni.  

8.6 Bike Rebalancing. 

(a) Koloni will return all bikes to the Customer within 48 hours of notice 

that the bike rental has ended outside the Customers service area. If a bike that has left 

a service area due to theft or damage, then Koloni will use its best efforts to replace or 

return the bike as soon as practical.  

8.7 Geofence.  

(a) Koloni will grant access to no more than 3 representatives from each 

Customer, with a preference of 1 contact person per Customer. Each Customer may 

adjust geofenced locations with 48 hour notice to Koloni and Koloni will rebalance the 

bikes no later than 48 hours after the location change. Koloni and the Customer will 

work together to ensure the best practices in the number and location of geofence 

locations.  

(b) If an advertising partner or Customer requests a temporary geofence 

location, Koloni will state an additional fee amount for the service. The fee will be 



based on the number of bikes, timing, and location of the request. Said fee must be 

paid 50% prior to the temporary location start and 50% at the end of the temporary 

location.  

8.8 Penalties. 

(a) If Koloni fails to respond to a customer service response in the time as 

stated in Section 8.5 or rebalance bikes in the time as stated in Section 8.6, and 

Customer gives 2 or more written warning of such failure in a calendar month then 

Customer may asses the following penalties: 

(i) First Failure: $50 

(ii) Second Failure: $200 

(iii) Third Failure: $500 

(iv) Fourth Failure: $750 

8.9 Theft.  

(a) In the event of a stolen bike, the parties shall work together to notify 

the local authorities of the event, including the bike identification number and its last 

known location. In the event that the bike is not recovered within 7 days, Koloni will 

replace the bike with a similar or like kind.  

9. Koloni will use reasonable efforts to develop an adaptive bike program to launch on a 

mutually agreed upon date between the Parties.  

10. Limitation of Liability. 

10.1 IN NO EVENT SHALL KOLONI BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER ANY 

THIRD PARTY FOR ANY LOSS OF USE, REVENUE, OR PROFIT OR LOSS OF DATA 

OR DIMINUTION IN VALUE, OR FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, 

INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHETHER 

ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), 

OR OTHERWISE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGE WAS 

FORESEEABLE AND WHETHER OR NOT KOLONI HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE 

POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF 

ANY AGREED OR OTHER REMEDY OF ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE.  

10.2 IN NO EVENT SHALL KOLONI’S AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING 

OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF OR 

RELATED TO BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), OR 

OTHERWISE, EXCEED THE AGGREGATE AMOUNTS PAID TO KOLONI 

PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT IN THE 12 MONTH PERIOD PRECEDING THE 

EVENT GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM.  



11. Warranties.  

11.1 KOLONI MAKES NO WARRANTY WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT TO 

THE GOODS, INCLUDING ANY (a) WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY; OR (b) 

WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE; OR (c) WARRANTY 

AGAINST INFRINGEMENT OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A THIRD 

PARTY; WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY LAW, COURSE OF DEALING, 

COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, USAGE OF TRADE OR OTHERWISE. 

11.2 Products manufactured by a third party, including but not limited to the locking 

hardware and system, ("Third-Party Product") may constitute, contain, be contained in, 

incorporated into, attached to or packaged together with, the Goods. KOLONI MAKES NO 

REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO ANY THIRD-PARTY 

PRODUCT, INCLUDING ANY (a) WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY; (b) 

WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE; OR (d) WARRANTY 

AGAINST INFRINGEMENT OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A THIRD 

PARTY; WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY LAW, COURSE OF DEALING, 

COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, USAGE OF TRADE OR OTHERWISE. 

12. Confidential Information. All non-public, confidential or proprietary information of 

Koloni, including, but not limited to, specifications, samples, patterns, designs, plans, drawings, 

documents, data, business operations, customer lists, pricing, discounts or rebates, disclosed by 

Koloni to Customer , whether disclosed orally or disclosed or accessed in written, electronic or 

other form or media, and whether or not marked, designated or otherwise identified as 

"confidential," in connection with this Agreement is confidential, solely for the use of 

performing this Agreement and may not be disclosed or copied unless authorized by Koloni in 

writing. Upon Koloni's request, Customer shall promptly return all documents and other 

materials received from Koloni. Koloni shall be entitled to injunctive relief for any violation of 

this Section. This Section shall not apply to information that is: (a) in the public domain; (b) 

known to the Customer at the time of disclosure; or (c) rightfully obtained by Customer on a 

non-confidential basis from a third party. 

13. Intellectual Property Rights.  

13.1 Ownership. Subject to the express rights and licenses granted by Koloni in this 

Agreement, Customer acknowledges and agrees that:  

(a) any and all Koloni's rights in and to copyrights, trade secrets, data, 

trademarks (and related goodwill), mask works, patents, and other intellectual property 

rights therein arising in any jurisdiction throughout the world and all related rights of 

priority under international conventions with respect thereto, including all pending and 

future applications and registrations therefor, and continuations, divisions, 

continuations-in-part, reissues, extensions, and renewals thereof (“Intellectual 

Property Rights”) are the sole and exclusive property of Koloni or its licensors;  

(b) Customer shall not acquire any ownership interest in any of Koloni's 

Intellectual Property Rights under this Agreement; 



(c) any goodwill derived from the use by Customer of Koloni's Intellectual 

Property Rights inures to the benefit of Koloni or its licensors, as the case may be; 

(d) if Customer acquires any Intellectual Property Rights in or relating to 

any Product purchased under this Agreement including any rights in any Trademarks, 

derivative works or patent improvements relating thereto, by operation of law, or 

otherwise, these rights are deemed and are hereby irrevocably assigned to Koloni or its 

licensors, as the case may be, without further action by either Party; and 

(e) Customer shall use Koloni's Intellectual Property Rights solely for the 

purposes of performing its obligations under this Agreement and only in accordance 

with this Agreement and the instructions of Koloni. 

14. Trademark License Grant. This Agreement does not grant either Party the right to use 

the other Party's or their Affiliates' Trademarks except as set out under this Section. The terms 

and conditions of this Agreement, each Party hereby grants to the other Party a non-exclusive, 

non-transferable, and non-sublicensable license to use the Party’s Trademarks in the United 

States during the Term solely on or in connection with the promotion, advertising, and resale of 

the Products in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Party will 

promptly discontinue the display or use of any Trademark to change the manner in which a 

Trademark is displayed or used with regard to the Products when requested by the other Party. 

Other than the express licenses granted by this Agreement, the Parties grant no right or license to 

the other Party, by implication, estoppel, or otherwise, to the Products or any Intellectual 

Property Rights of the Party. 

15. Trademark Prohibited Acts.  

15.1 The Parties shall not: 

(a) take any action that may interfere with any of other Parties rights in or 

to the other Parties Intellectual Property Rights, including ownership or exercise 

thereof; 

(b) challenge any right, title, or interest of other Parties in or to other 

Parties Intellectual Property Rights; 

(c) make any claim or take any action adverse to other Parties ownership 

of Intellectual Property Rights; 

(d) register or apply for registrations, anywhere in the world, for other 

Parties Trademarks or any other Trademark that is similar to other Parties Trademarks 

or that incorporates other Parties Trademarks in whole or in confusingly similar part; 

(e) use any mark, anywhere, that is confusingly similar to other Parties 

Trademarks; 



(f) engage in any action that tends to disparage, dilute the value of, or 

reflect negatively on the products purchased under this Agreement (including 

Products) or any other Parties Trademark;  

(g) misappropriate any of other Parties Trademarks for use as a domain 

name without prior written consent from the other Party; and 

(h) alter, obscure, or remove any of other Parties Trademarks or trademark 

or copyright notices or any other proprietary rights notices placed on the products 

purchased under this Agreement (including Products), marketing materials, or other 

materials that other Party may provide. 

16. Koloni's Trademark Notices. Customer shall ensure that all Products used by 

Customer and all related quotations, specifications, and descriptive literature, and all other 

materials carrying Koloni's Trademark, are marked with the appropriate trademark notices in 

accordance with Koloni's instructions. Customer shall not alter, remove, or deface or allow to be 

altered, removed, or defaced any Trademark or Tradename of the Koloni on the Goods. 

17. Insurance. During the term of this Agreement the parties shall, at their own expense, 

maintain and carry insurance with financially sound and reputable insurers, in full force and 

effect that includes, but is not limited to, commercial general liability in a sum no less than 

$2,000,000 with financially sound and reputable insurers.  

18. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including and together with any related Order 

Form, Software License Service Agreement, exhibits, schedules, attachments and appendices, 

constitutes the sole and entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter 

contained herein, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings, agreements, 

representations and warranties, both written and oral, regarding such subject matter. The parties 

acknowledge and agree that if there is any conflict between the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement and the terms and conditions of any Order Form or Software License Service 

Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall supersede and control. 

19. Notices. All notices, requests, consents, claims, demands, waivers and other 

communications under this Agreement (each, a "Notice", and with the correlative meaning 

"Notify") must be in writing and addressed to the other Party at its address set forth below (or to 

such other address that the receiving Party may designate from time to time in accordance with 

this Section). Unless otherwise agreed herein, all Notices must be delivered by personal delivery, 

nationally recognized overnight courier or certified or registered mail (in each case, return 

receipt requested, postage prepaid). Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, a Notice is 

effective only (a) on receipt by the receiving Party; and (b) if the Party giving the Notice has 

complied with the requirements of this Section 19. 

Notice to Koloni: 325 N. Main St. 

Pocahontas, IA 50574  
 

Attention: Kate Lyon, COO 

CUSTOMER ADDRESS 



 

Notice to Customer 

Attention: 

 

 

 

 

20. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is found by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, 

illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other term or provision of this Agreement or 

invalidate or render unenforceable such term or provision in any other jurisdiction. Upon a 

determination that any term or provision is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the Parties shall 

negotiate in good faith to/the court may modify this Agreement to effect the original intent of the 

Parties as closely as possible in order that the transactions contemplated hereby be consummated 

as originally contemplated to the greatest extent possible. 

21. Amendments. No amendment to or modification of or rescission, termination or 

discharge of this Agreement is effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized 

representative of each Party.  

22. Waiver. No waiver by any Party of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 

effective unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by the Party so waiving. Except as 

otherwise set forth in this Agreement, no failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right, 

remedy, power or privilege arising from this Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver 

thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege 

hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, 

remedy, power or privilege. 

23. Assignment. Customer shall not assign, transfer, delegate or subcontract any of its 

rights or delegate any of its obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of 

Koloni. Any purported assignment or delegation in violation of this Section 23 shall be null and 

void. No assignment or delegation shall relieve the Customer of any of its obligations under this 

Agreement.  

24. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is binding on and inures to the benefit of the 

Parties to this Agreement and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns.  

25. Relationship of the Parties. The relationship between the parties is that of independent 

contractors. The details of the method and manner for performance of the services by Koloni 

shall be under its own control, Customer interested only in the results thereof. Koloni shall be 

solely responsible for supervising, controlling and directing the details and manner of the 

completion of the services.  Nothing in this Agreement shall give the Customer the right to 

instruct, supervise, control, or direct the details and manner of the completion of the services.  

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as creating any agency, partnership, joint 

venture or other form of joint enterprise, employment or fiduciary relationship between the 



parties, and neither party shall have authority to contract for or bind the other party in any 

manner whatsoever. 

26. Choice of Law. This Agreement and all related documents including all exhibits 

attached hereto, and all matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement, whether sounding in 

contract, tort, or statute are governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State 

of Iowa, United States of America, without giving effect to the conflict of laws provisions 

thereof to the extent such principles or rules would require or permit the application of the laws 

of any jurisdiction other than those of the State of Iowa. 

27. Choice of Forum. Each Party irrevocably and unconditionally agrees that it will not 

commence any action, litigation or proceeding of any kind whatsoever against the other Party in 

any way arising from or relating to this Agreement, including all exhibits, schedules, attachments 

and appendices attached to this Agreement, and all contemplated transactions, in any forum other 

than Polk County District Court and any appellate court from any thereof. Each Party irrevocably 

and unconditionally submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts and agrees to bring any 

such action, litigation or proceeding only in Southern District of Iowa or the courts of the State 

of Iowa. Each Party agrees that a final judgment in any such action, litigation, or proceeding is 

conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other 

manner provided by law. 

28. Force Majeure. Koloni shall not be liable or responsible to Customer nor be deemed to 

have defaulted or breached this Agreement, for any failure or delay in fulfilling or performing 

any term of this Agreement when and to the extent such failure or delay is caused by or results 

from acts or circumstances beyond the reasonable control of Koloni including, without 

limitation, acts of God, flood, fire, earthquake, explosion, governmental actions, war, invasion or 

hostilities (whether war is declared or not), terrorist threats or acts, riot, or other civil unrest, 

national emergency, revolution, insurrection, epidemic, lock-outs, strikes or other labor disputes 

(whether or not relating to either party's workforce), or restraints or delays affecting carriers or 

inability or delay in obtaining supplies of adequate or suitable materials, materials or 

telecommunication breakdown or power outage, provided that, if the event in question continues 

for a continuous period in excess of 30 days. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 

the Effective Date by their respective duly authorized officers. 

 

 
 

Koloni, Inc.  

 
By_____________________ 

Name: 

Title: 

 

Customer 

By______________________ 

Name: 

Title:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBITS ATTACHED  

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

Dated: November 01, 2019 

 

Software License and Services Agreement 
 

This Software License and Services Agreement ("Software and Services Agreement") 

between Koloni, Inc. an Iowa corporation ("Vendor," “us” or "we") and your company, town, or 

owner (“Company” or “you”) governs your licenses and subscriptions to software and services 

provided by us ("Vendor Software and Services") from and through the Vendor website ( 
http://kolonishare.com/partner or other URLs designated by us) (“Website”). The Software and 

Services Agreement was updated as of the date above, and supersedes all previous versions, if 

any.  

 

We may revise the terms of the Software and Services Agreement, which will be 

effective as of the date a new version of the Software and Services Agreement is posted on the 

Website at a location accessible by you. The current version of the Software and Services 

Agreement may be viewed at http://kolonishare.com/partner. 

 

BY CLICKING THE ICON BELOW INDICATING THAT YOU AGREE TO 

THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS, OR BY REGISTERING, LOGGING IN, 

INSTALLING, COPYING, OR OTHERWISE USING THE SOFTWARE PRODUCT, 

YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THIS SOFTWARE AND SERVICES 

AGREEMENT, INCLUDING THE WARRANTY DISCLAIMERS, LIMITATIONS OF 

LIABILITY, TERMINATION PROVISIONS AND EXHIBITS BELOW. IF YOU DO 

NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS SOFTWARE AND SERVICES AGREEMENT, 

DO NOT CLICK THE ICON BELOW, DO NOT REGISTER, LOG IN, USE OR 

INSTALL THE SOFTWARE PRODUCT AND EXIT NOW.   

 

------------------------ 

1. Participant Rights and Licenses. As a subscriber, you will have a non-exclusive, non-

transferable, royalty-free right and license during the term of your subscription for Vendor 

Software and Services to:  

 

(i) register, access and use Vendor Software and Services on your computer equipment as 

described in this Agreement.  

 

http://kolonishare.com/partner


You acknowledge that Vendor software is intended and licensed only for integrated use with 

Vendor Software and Services during the term of your subscription. As such, you are licensed to 

register and use or install and use the Vendor software only on computer equipment that has data 

communication with Vendor computer equipment enabled and operational at all times.  

 

2. Accounts. You will create and maintain an account registration for each person within your 

Company that you have authorized to access Vendor Services (“Authorized User”). You will 

take reasonable steps to ensure all user names and passwords are kept confidential, and you will 

be responsible for all activities, damages and losses that occur or are caused in significant part 

under any of these accounts, even if access or use of such accounts is not known to or authorized 

by you. If you suspect there is any loss or disclosure of any password or unauthorized use of any 

accounts of an Authorized User, you will immediately change the password for such accounts 

and promptly notify Vendor by contacting kate@kolonishare.com.  

 

3. Subscription and Other Fees; Quarterly True-Up; Taxes.  
 

3.1. We may charge and collect from you sales, use, value-added, property and other taxes that 

we determine should be collected and remitted by us to government authorities for software and 

services licensed or subscribed by you under the Agreement. Except for taxes that we charge and 

collect from you, you will be solely responsible to report and remit payment of all applicable 

taxes to the relevant government authorities for software and services licensed or subscribed by 

you under the Agreement. If a government authority notifies us that additional taxes (other than 

income taxes) should collected from you and/or remitted by us for Vendor Software and Services 

ordered by you, we may invoice you, and you will immediately remit payment to us, for all 

additional taxes claimed by the government authority, so that the net amount retained by us after 

paying the additional taxes will be equal to the amount that we would have been entitled to 

receive from you if the additional taxes had not been claimed or applicable to the Vendor 

Software and Services ordered by you.  

 

4. Collected Information.  

 

4.1. You acknowledge and agree that Vendor may access, collect, store and use the following 

information (“Collected Information”) in connection with your use of the Website and Vendor 

Software and Services:  

(a) Website and Vendor Software and Services access and activity data (“Website Services 

Data”); 

(b) Personal and non-personal information about Authorized Users and other Company 

representatives which is included in account registrations for Company and its Authorized Users, 

and; 

(c) Inventory and usage information about your computer equipment and software 

(“Inventory/Usage Information”) that you have collected and stored in Active Directory, which 

includes limited personal and non-personal information about Company personnel and other 

users of Company’s computer equipment.  

 

4.2. You further agree that:  



(a) We may store any Collected Information on computer equipment used by Vendor to operate 

the Website and provide Vendor Software and Services,  

(b) We may collect and use personal and non-personal Collected Information for the following 

reasons:  

(1) to contact you about your rights, obligations, updates, feedback, or performance under 

this Software and Services Agreement,  

(2) to perform Vendor Software and Services, and to verify Authorized Users and devices 

in connection with your software licenses and subscribed services,  

(3) to meet regulatory requirements,  

(4) to notify you through Company representatives about other Vendor products or 

services, and 

(5) to sell and service products and services created by the Vendor using Collected 

Information, 

 

(c) We may use any Collected Information other than personal information about Company 

personnel and other users of Company computer equipment separately or in combination with 

data from other users of Vendor Services to develop, analyze, market manage and deliver 

products and services of benefit to you, including performance analysis, benchmarking, product 

improvement, marketing and other legitimate business purposes, so long as personal identities 

are not disclosed and are not readily discernible, and  

 

(d) We may disclose any Collected Information in accordance with applicable law as may be 

required by the United States or other national governments and their respective 

instrumentalities, including federal, state and local courts, law enforcement and regulatory 

agencies.  

 

4.3. We are accountable for the protection of personal information under our control as described 

in our privacy policy. All questions, complaints and inquiries concerning our privacy policy 

should be directed to our Chief Operations Officer, who may be reached at the address indicated 

in the privacy policy Software and Services Agreement.  

 

5. Restrictions. You shall not use the Vendor Services for any purposes beyond the scope of the 

access granted in this Software and Services Agreement. You shall not at any time, directly or 

indirectly, and shall not permit any Authorized Users to: (i) copy, modify, or create derivative 

works of the Services or Documentation, in whole or in part; (ii) rent, lease, lend, sell, license, 

sublicense, assign, distribute, publish, transfer, or otherwise make available the Vendor Services 

or Documentation; (iii) reverse engineer, disassemble, decompile, decode, adapt, or otherwise 

attempt to derive or gain access to any software component of the Vendor Services, in whole or 

in part; (iv) remove any proprietary notices from the Vendor Services or Documentation; or (v) 

use the Vendor Services or Documentation in any manner or for any purpose that infringes, 

misappropriates, or otherwise violates any intellectual property right or other right of any person, 

or that violates any applicable law. 

 

6. Representations and Indemnifications.  

 



6.1. We represent and warrant that (i) we are a company organized under the laws of the State of 

Iowa, and (ii) we have the right, power and authority necessary to enter into and perform this 

Software and Services Agreement in accordance with its terms. 

 

6.2. You represent and warrant that (i) any individual who accepts and/or executes the Software 

and Services Agreement is authorized to act on your behalf, (ii) you have the right, power and 

authority necessary to enter into and perform this Software and Services Agreement in 

accordance with its terms, including without limitation, to authorize us to access, transfer, store 

and use any Collected Information as described in Section 4, and (iii) All of your representatives 

will comply with the terms of this Software and Services Agreement. 

  

6.3. You agree to indemnify and hold us and our respective directors, officers, representatives, 

agents, suppliers, contractors, employees, and volunteers, harmless from and against any loss, 

liability, claim, demand, damages, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) 

which are due to or arising out of, in whole or significant part, the violation of any provision of 

the Software and Services Agreement by you, your users and others for whose actions you are 

legally responsible.  

 

7. Warranty Disclaimers. EXCEPT FOR THE LIMITED WARRANTIES DESCRIBED IN 

THIS SOFTWARE AND SERVICES AGREEMENT, YOUR ACCESS AND USE OF THE 

WEBSITE, VENDOR SOFTWARE AND SERVICES AND/OR ANY RELATED 

SOFTWARE, SERVICES, COLLATERAL MATERIALS OR OTHER CONTENT 

PROVIDED BY US IN CONNECTION WITH THIS SOFTWARE AND SERVICES 

AGREEMENT ARE ENTIRELY AT YOUR OWN RISK, AND THE WEBSITE, VENDOR 

SOFTWARE AND SERVICES AND ALL SOFTWARE, SERVICES, COLLATERAL 

MATERIALS AND OTHER CONTENT AVAILABLE FROM OR IN CONNECTION WITH 

THE WEBSITE OR VENDOR SOFTWARE AND SERVICES OR UNDER THIS 

SOFTWARE AND SERVICES AGREEMENT ARE PROVIDED "AS IS," “AS AVAILABLE” 

AND “WITH ALL FAULTS.” TO THE GREATEST EXTENT NOT PROHIBITED BY 

APPLICABLE LAW, WE DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL REPRESENTATIONS AND 

WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT 

LIMITATION ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF TITLE, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS 

FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT. YOU ALSO 

ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT VENDOR SOFTWARE AND SERVICES MAY 

DEPEND ON INFORMATION AND FUNCTIONALITIES PROVIDED BY THIRD PARTY 

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES, AND WE ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE TO VERIFY THE 

ACCURACY, COMPLETENESS, RELIABILITY, CURRENCY, TIMELINESS OR 

QUALITY OF SUCH INFORMATION OR FUNCTIONALITIES. WE DO NOT REPRESENT 

OR WARRANT THAT SOFTWARE OR CONTENT PROVIDED IN CONNECTION WITH 

VENDOR SOFTWARE AND SERVICES IS ACCURATE, COMPLETE, OR RELIABLE.  

 

8. Limitation of Liability. IN NO EVENT WILL VENDOR OR ANY OF ITS OFFICERS, 

DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR OTHER REPRESENTATIVES BE LIABLE TO 

YOU OR ANY THIRD PERSON FOR ANY INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL 

OR ECONOMIC LOSS OR DAMAGES (E.G., DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF BUSINESS 

PROFITS, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF BUSINESS INFORMATION, LOSS OF 



ACCOUNT INFORMATION OR PERSONAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANTS, ETC.) 

OR ANY SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE DAMAGE ARISING FROM OR 

RELATING TO THE WEBSITE OR VENDOR SOFTWARE AND SERVICES, INCLUDING 

WITHOUT LIMITATION, YOUR ABILITY OR INABILITY TO ACCESS OR USE THE 

WEBSITE OR VENDOR SOFTWARE AND SERVICES, EVEN IF WE ARE AWARE OR 

HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES. 

FURTHER, IN NO EVENT WILL OUR TOTAL CUMULATIVE LIABILITY TO YOU AND 

ALL THIRD PARTIES ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO THE WEBSITE OR VENDOR 

SOFTWARE AND SERVICES EXCEED THE AMOUNT WE HAVE ACTUALLY 

RECEIVED FOR YOUR ACCESS OR USE OF THE WEBSITE OR PERFORMANCE OF 

VENDOR SOFTWARE AND SERVICES DURING THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD 

IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE DATE OF THE CLAIM, OR TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS 

(US$25.00), WHICHEVER IS GREATER.  

 

SOME JURISDICTIONS DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN 

WARRANTIES OR THE LIMITATION OR EXCLUSION OF LIABILITY FOR 

INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, IN WHICH EVENT; SOME OF THE 

ABOVE LIMITATIONS MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.  

 

9. Term, Automatic Renewal; Suspension, Termination, Survival. This Software License and 

Services Agreement will begin as of the date the Services Agreement is entered into, and will 

continue until the end of the Term as stated in the Services Agreement.  

 

We may suspend, limit or terminate your account or Vendor Software and Services at any 

time if you are in default of this Software License and Services Agreement or Services 

Agreement.  

 

Upon termination of this Software License and Services Agreement, all of your rights and 

licenses under this Software License and Services Agreement will terminate, and your ability to 

access or use the Website or Vendor Software and Services may be limited or blocked, and 

except as otherwise authorized by us, you must return or destroy all software and all materials 

with confidential information provided or disclosed by us in connection with this Software 

License and Services Agreement or Vendor Software and Services.  

 

 

10. Reserved. 
 

11. Confidential Information.  

 

11.1. Except as otherwise authorized by the relevant party in writing, Vendor and Company will 

keep confidential other non-public information reasonably disclosed by or on behalf of, and 

belonging to, the other party in connection with transactions contemplated by this Software and 

Services Agreement, provided however, Vendor is permitted to use and disclose Collected 

Information to the extent permitted by Section 4 (Collected Information).  

 



11.2. The receiving party will protect the other party’s confidential information with the same 

degree of care as it uses to protect its own confidential information, and may share the 

confidential information with its advisors and consultants who are bound by confidentiality 

obligations consistent with the receiving party’s obligations. If the receiving party receives a 

request pursuant to a court order, governmental body request or other legal process to disclose 

the other party’s confidential information, the receiving party will promptly notify the other party 

and provide reasonable assistance to maintain the confidentiality of such information. The 

receiving party will not be subject to confidentiality obligations for confidential information that 

(a) at the time of receipt was already known to it without confidentiality obligations; (b) becomes 

publicly known through no wrongful act of the receiving party; (c) was received from a third 

party without confidentiality obligations or knowledge that the information was subject to 

confidentiality obligations; (d) was disclosed to third parties by the other party without 

confidentiality obligations; (e) is independently developed by the receiving party without use of 

the confidential information of the other party, or (f) was released pursuant to prior written 

authorization by the other party.  

 

12. Intellectual Property. The subscription rights and licenses granted herein are limited to the 

specific rights and duration listed in this Software and Services Agreement. We reserve all rights 

not expressly granted, nothing in this Software and Services Agreement grants, by implication, 

waiver, estoppel, or otherwise to you or any third party intellectual property rights or other right, 

title, or interest in or to the our intellectual property.   

 

You may not disassemble, decompile or otherwise reverse engineer or attempt to 

reconstruct or discover any source code, or underlying ideas or algorithms for Vendor Software 

and Services or associated software, You also may not (i) reverse engineer, decompile, 

disassemble, or reconfigure any software used or made available in connection with the Vendor 

Software and Services, or (ii) use such software to provide functionality or data for use by third 

party software or services, except as expressly authorized by us and applicable law which cannot 

be waived by this provision or as expressly authorized in writing by Vendor.  

 

Vendor Software and Services and all content that appears on or in connection with the 

Website are copyrighted works of Vendor and/or our suppliers, and may not be used, copied, 

stored or distributed in any manner in whole or significant part except as provided by the 

Software and Services Agreement or with prior written permission of Vendor.  

 

This Software and Services Agreement, and all related licenses, Software and Services 

Agreements, policies and guidelines, if any, are copyrighted works of Vendor and the Third 

party Software Owner and may not be used, copied, stored, or distributed in any manner in 

whole or significant part except with the prior written permission of the applicable copyright 

holder(s).  

 

You may not use, display, alter or remove Vendor trademarks except with our prior 

written permission on any Software or hardware goods. Third party trademarks belong to and are 

subject to policies and use restrictions of their respective owners.  

 



Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, we may temporarily suspend 

your and any authorized end user's access to any portion or all of the Vendor Services if: (i) we 

reasonably determines that (A) there is a threat or attack on any of the our IP; (B) You or any end 

user's use of the our IP disrupts or poses a security risk to the our IP; (C) You, or any end user, is 

using the our IP for fraudulent or illegal activities; (D) subject to applicable law, you have ceased 

to continue its business in the ordinary course, made an assignment for the benefit of creditors or 

similar disposition of its assets, or become the subject of any bankruptcy, reorganization, 

liquidation, dissolution, or similar proceeding; or (E) Our provision of the Vendor Services to 

you or any end user is prohibited by applicable law; (ii) any of our providers have suspended or 

terminated our access to or use of any third-party services or products required to enable you to 

access the Vendor Services. We shall use commercially reasonable efforts to provide written 

notice of any Service Suspension to you and to provide updates regarding resumption of access 

to the Vendor Services following any Service Suspension. We shall use commercially reasonable 

efforts to resume providing access to the Vendor Services as soon as reasonably possible after 

the event giving rise to the Service Suspension is cured. We will have no liability for any 

damage, liabilities, losses (including any loss of data or profits), or any other consequences that 

you or any other user may incur as a result of a Service Suspension.  

Aggregated Statistics. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Software Services 

Agreement, we may monitor your use of the Vendor Services and collect and compile 

aggregated Statistics. As between us and you, all right, title, and interest in aggregated statistics, 

and all intellectual property rights therein, belong to and are retained solely by us. You 

acknowledges that we may compile aggregated statistics based on your data input into the 

Vendor Services. You agree that we may (i) make aggregated statistics publicly available in 

compliance with applicable law, (ii) use aggregated statistics to the extent and in the manner 

permitted under applicable law, and (iii) use aggregated statistics for any lawful purpose.  

Information.  You acknowledge and agree that we may access, collect, store and use the 

following information (“Information”) in connection with your use of the Website and Our 

Vendor Software and Services:  

Application, Website and Vendor Software and Services access and activity data 

(“Services Data”),  

Personal and non-personal information about you and your representatives which is 

included in account registrations for you and your users, and  

Inventory and usage information about your computer equipment and software 

(“Inventory/Usage Information”) which includes limited personal and non-personal information 

about your personnel and other users of your computer equipment.  

You further agree that:  

We may collect and store any Information and Collected Information on computer 

equipment used by us to operate the Application, Website and provide Our Vendor Software and 

Services,  



We may use any Information and Collected Information other than personal information 

about your personnel and other users of your computer equipment separately or in combination 

with data from other users of our Vendor Services to develop, analyze, market manage and 

deliver any products and services of benefit to you, including performance analysis, 

benchmarking, product improvement, marketing and other legitimate business purposes, so long 

as personal identities are not disclosed, and  

We may disclose any Information and Collected Information in accordance with 

applicable law as may be required by the United States or other national governments and their 

respective instrumentalities, including federal, state and local courts, law enforcement and 

regulatory agencies.  

We are accountable for the protection of personal information under our control as 

described in our privacy policy. All questions, complaints and inquiries concerning our privacy 

policy should be directed to our Chief Operating Officer, who may be reached at the address 

indicated in the privacy policy Software and Services Agreement.  

 

 

13. Notices. Notices to Vendor may be sent in written form to following address: 325 N. Main 

St. Pocahontas, IA 50574, by email to support@kolonishare.com, or by web form provided on 

the Website.  

 

Notices to you may be sent to the physical or email address indicated in the primary 

account registration for you.  

 

Properly addressed notices will be deemed to have been delivered to the intended 

recipient (i) five (5) business days after depositing into the U.S. mail for international delivery, 

(ii) three (3) business days after being sent by express courier for international delivery or 

deposited into the U.S. mail for domestic delivery, and (iii) one (1) business day after being sent 

by express courier for domestic delivery or after being sent by electronic means for international 

or domestic delivery.  

 

14. Feedback. Your feedback is important to us. We highly encourage you to provide comments, 

suggestions, proposed technology solutions and other feedback about Vendor Software and 

Services or anything related to your experience in using the these services by contacting 

support@kolonishare.com. Please note: You hereby assign to us on your behalf, and on behalf of 

its employees, contractors and/or agents, all right, title, and interest in, and we are free to use, 

without any attribution or compensation to any party, any ideas, know-how, concepts, 

techniques, or other intellectual property rights contained in the feedback, for any purpose 

whatsoever, although We are not required to use any feedback 

 

15. Miscellaneous.  
 

15.1You may not assign or delegate your rights or obligations under the Software and Services 

Agreement, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, to any other person or entity, 



except with our prior written permission. Any attempted assignment or delegation otherwise by 

you is void.  

 

15.2. The terms of the Software and Services Agreement do not create a partnership, joint 

venture, agency or franchise relationship between us and you.  

 

15.3. Vendor Software and Services and related software provided to you under the Software and 

Services Agreement may be subject to United States export control restrictions. You agree to not 

transfer, export or re-export software, services or other technology delivered in connection with 

Vendor Software and Services to any country, person, entity or individual in violation of United 

States export control restrictions. Without limiting the generality of the previous sentence, you 

may not transfer, export, re-export or permit access to software, services or other technology to a 

country which is embargoed by the United States, to a national or resident of an embargoed 

country, or to any person or entity designated by the United States government as restricted or 

prohibited from engaging in United States export transactions.  

 

15.4. If any provision of the Software and Services Agreement is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall remain in full 

force and effect.  

 

15.5. No waiver of any breach of any provision of the Software and Services Agreement will 

constitute a waiver of any prior, concurrent or later breach, and no waiver will be effective unless 

made in a writing signed by an authorized representative of the waiving party.  

 

15.6. In no event shall we be liable to you, or be deemed to have breached this Software and 

Services Agreement, for any failure or delay in performing its obligations under this Software 

and Services Agreement, if and to the extent such failure or delay is caused by any circumstances 

beyond our reasonable control, including but not limited to acts of God, weather, regulatory 

prohibitions, flood, fire, earthquake, explosion, war, terrorism, invasion, riot or other civil unrest, 

strikes, labor stoppages or slowdowns or other industrial disturbances, or passage of law or any 

action taken by a governmental or public authority, including imposing an embargo. 

  

15.7. This Software License and Services Agreement, which may include referenced agreements 

of the Leases, Sales Agreement, Service Agreements, End User Application Agreement, and 

policies and guidelines, constitutes the entire Software and Services Agreement between us and 

you for your access and use of the Website and Vendor Software and Services.  

 

------------------------ 

 

 



EXHIBIT 2 

Order Form 

Koloni, Inc.  

325 N. Main St. 

Pocahontas, IA 50574 

brian@koloni.me 

 

 

Customer:  

 

Type of Good Number Annual Monthly Fee Per Good  Total Cost  

    

 

Total Annual Amount Owed to Koloni: 

 

Custom Terms 

1.  

 

Customer Contact Information:  

 

 

 

Dated:  

 

CUSTOMER NAME Koloni, Inc.  

By_____________________ 

Name: 

Title: 

 

 

 

 

 

By_____________________ 

Name: 

Title: 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:brian@koloni.me


With Invoice Attached.  

 

 

 



41W011 Burlington Road, St. Charles, Illinois 60175 | (630) 584-1170 | WWW.KKCOM.ORG 

 

Chairman 

Jeffery Schielke 

Mayor  

          City of Batavia 

Vice Chairman 

John Skillman 

President 

Village of Carpentersville 

CMAP Committee 

Representatives  

Chris Lauzen 
Kane County Chairman 

MPO Policy Committee 

Scott Gryder 
Kendall County Chairman 

MPO Policy Committee 

Jeffery Schielke 

Council of Mayors 

Executive Committee Chair 

MPO Policy Committee 

Matthew Brolley 

CMAP Board 

MPO Policy Committee 

Municipal Members 

Village of Algonquin  

City of Aurora  

Village of Big Rock  

Village of Burlington 

Village of Campton Hills 

Village of East Dundee 

Village of Elburn 

City of Elgin  

City of Geneva 

Village of Gilberts  

Village of Hampshire 

Village of Huntley  

Village of Kaneville 

Village of Lily Lake  

Village of Lisbon  

Village of Maple Park 

Village of Millbrook 

Village of Millington 

Village of Montgomery 

Village of Newark  

Village of North Aurora 

Village of Oswego  

Village of Pingree Grove  

City of  Plano 

Village of Plattville  

City of Sandwich 

Village of Sleepy Hollow 

Village of South Elgin  

City of St. Charles  

Village of Sugar Grove 

Village of Virgil 

Village of Wayne  

Village of West Dundee 

City of Yorkville 

County Members 

Kane County  

Kendall County

                                                                       

                                                                                              COUNCIL STAFF 

                                                                                                                                                  Thomas B. Rickert          Jacqueline L. Forbes 

Executive Director Council Director 

 

                                                                                                                                                  Troy M. Simpson              Noah S. Jones 

Planning Liaison Planning Liaison 

     

 

DATE: December 10, 2020 
 
TO: KKCOM Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee 
 
FROM: Council Staff 
 
RE: Bike Ped Coordinator Updates 

 

 
COVID Cycling Trends 
 
The drastic changes to the transportation landscape seen over the past 9 months 
have seen some positive impacts to both the trip volume of current cyclists as well as 
the number of individuals participating in cycling overall. Council staff have 
gathered some data on this topic from sources using several different measurement 
methods. 
 
Strava 
 
Council staff gained access to the Strava Metro dashboard and have localized 
active transportation data for both Kane and Kendall counties. The data are 
compiled from individual user entries into the Strava mobile application, and are 
contextualized within the past four years.  
 
2020 data for Kane County shows that total bicycle trips have more than doubled 
over the norms from the previous three years, the number of individuals reporting 
trips has almost doubled, working age adults and children have garnered an 
increased proportion of total trips, and the ratio of locals to visitors making cycling 
trips within the county has increased from 1:2 to 1:1. 
 
2020 data for Kendall County shows that total bicycle trips have total bicycle trips 
have more than double over the norms from the previous three years, the number of 
individuals reporting trips has increased by ~60%, young adults and children have 
garnered an increased proportion of total trips, and the ratio of locals to visitors 
making cycling trips within the county has increased from 1:5 to 1:4. 
 
Replica 
 
Council staff have had access to Replica data since October of 2019. Replica have 
recently updated their dashboard to provide visuals of year over year changes in 
trip modes. Replica actually reports an oscillating trend for bicycle trips, where the 
lockdown periods in March and more recently see barely increased (or near same) 
2020 mode share in Kane County for bicycles and the months in between see 
decreased mode share. This should be taken with a grain of salt; however, because 
Replica is only reporting data for weekday trips in this instance, not weekend. The 
data showed substantially similar weekday trends for Kendall County. 
 
 
 

http://www.kkcom.org/
https://metroview.strava.com/
https://replicahq.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Google Mobility 
 
Council staff have been compiling data reported from Google Maps on changes in trip navigation 
requests from January 2020. The trip request data were broken out not by mode but by location 
type. Data for parks in Kane County showed 200-300% weekend spikes in requests for trips, with 
lower differentials for weekday values. This is perhaps consistent with the data reported from 
Replica. Kendall County requests for the same trip type were statistically significant for reporting 
purposes. 
 
Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program 2020 Initial Results 
 
Council staff attended the December CMAP Bicycle and Pedestrian Task Force meeting, at which 
the Active Transportation Alliance reported initial results for ITEP applications for Cycle 14: 

 Cycle 13 (2018) ~230 applications, $30M in funding available 

 Cycle 14 (2020) ~250 applications, $105.6M available 
It is expected that a much higher ratio of applications will be approved, provided the average cost 
per project has not substantially increased. The next round of ITEP applications is due to occur in 
2022.  
 
Fox River Trail Signage Inventory Updates 
 
Batavia 
 
Council staff are in the process of updating the Fox River Trail Signage Inventory to accommodate 
substantial changes to signage in Batavia. It is anticipated that the signage map will be updated 
with the new information prior to the meeting. 
 
Tri-Com Dispatch 
 
The Fox River Trail Signage Inventory included rural address mile markers and mile markers, which 
council staff recently provided to Tri-Com central dispatch due to reports of emergency calls on the 
Fox River Trail where responders were asked to locate callers based on mile markers. Both existing 
and future signs were provided. 
 
Batavia Bicycle Commission 
 
The Batavia Bicycle Commission is currently working on plans to address local safety issues on the 
Fox River Trail within the City of Batavia. The Commission is currently working on creative signage 
ideas as well as trail alterations to this effect. The City of Batavia has also included an update to 
their Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan in their 2021 city budget. 
 
People for Bikes Advocacy Academy 
 
People for Bikes is an advocacy group that operates nationwide, and is well known for their 
comprehensive bicycle friendliness ratings. City ratings are available for Aurora, St Charles and 
Batavia.  
 
People for Bikes, through their Advocacy Academy, is hosting a video series for city leaders, 
decision makers and advocates. There are three parts to this series: 

 Series 1 (Recordings available): Lessons from the Best Biking Cities 

 Series 2 (Recordings available): Understanding the People for Bikes City Ratings 

 Series 3 (Available soon): How to Make a City Great for Biking 
 

https://peopleforbikes.org/
https://cityratings.peopleforbikes.org/


 

FHWA Pedestrian Safety Action Plan 
 
The FHWA has been conducting efforts focused on targeting pedestrian safety, in response to 
increased pedestrian deaths since the recession and now further increased pedestrian deaths 
during the COVID pandemic. Per the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, pedestrians 
comprised 17 percent of traffic fatalities in 2019. Several steps have been taken by the FHWA, 
including the establishment of October 2020 as Pedestrian Safety Month and the release of the 
FHWA STEP (Safe Transportation for Every Pedestrian) countermeasures resources.  
 
Most recently on November 23rd, the USDOT released the Pedestrian Safety Action Plan, outlining 
summary statistics regarding pedestrian crashes, accomplished goals through 2020, and future 
goals beyond 2020. Take a look at the plan here. 
 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Resources for KKCOM 

 
Council staff would like to remind members of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee of some of 
the resources we have available on the Bicycle and Pedestrian Resources page on the KDOT 
website as well as the Bike/Ped Info page on the KKCOM website. 
 
These include: 

 KKCOM Bike Ped App (Continuously Updated) 

 KKCOM Bicycle Facilities Implementation Dashboard (Continually Updated) 

 Kane and Northern Kendall County Bike Map (Updated – will not be printed until 
completion of Longmeadow Parkway Trail) 

 Fox River Trail Signage Inventory (Continually Updated) 
o Signage Spreadsheet 
o Location Map 

 

https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/ped_bike/step/resources/
https://highways.dot.gov/sites/fhwa.dot.gov/files/2020-11/FHWA_PedSafety_ActionPlan_Nov2020.pdf
http://kdot.countyofkane.org/Pages/Bicycle-and-Pedestrian-Resources.aspx
http://kkcom.org/BikePedInfo.aspx
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/7436884972354411ac8210b20f90d951
http://www.arcgis.com/home/item.html?id=a525500978174629a29a9d203c94175e#overview
http://kdot.countyofkane.org/Publications/Kane_Kendall_Bike_Map_2020-10-07.pdf
http://kdot.countyofkane.org/KKCOM/Documents/Signage%20Checks%20(Current).xlsx
http://kanegis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=33a2e712603749d69e7ff51306507991

	1 Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 PL Update
	4 Bike Share System 2020 Update
	5 Bike Share Figures 2020-2021
	6 Bike Share Services Agreement
	7 Bike Ped Coordinator Update

